
CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, Rotherham. 
Date: Monday, 10 May 2004 

  Time: 9.30 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Recycling Plan - Amendment (Pages 1 - 3) 

 to approve the implementation of the Blue Box Scheme to 100,000 premises a 
year ahead of schedule 

 
4. Regular Performance Assessment - Final Report (Pages 4 - 6) 

 To note the report and the positive statements by RPA Inspector 

 
5. South Yorkshire Housing Market Renewal Pathfinder (Pages 7 - 17) 

 - to approve the Capital Procedure 1 Form and note the procurement 
processes 

 
6. Homelessness Strategy (Pages 18 - 37) 

 To note the progress made against the action plans 

 
7. Petition - Ann Rhodes Centre (Pages 38 - 39) 

 To note the report 

 
8. Void Property Monitoring as at 30th April, 2004 (Pages 40 - 45) 

 Report to be supplied separately 

 
9. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in those paragraphs, indicated below, of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

 
10. Petition - St. Edmund's Avenue, Thurcroft  

 To receive a petition submitted by residents of St. Edmund’s Avenue, Thurcroft 

 

Public Document Pack



11. Decent Homes Scheme Phase 1A at West Melton (Pages 46 - 49) 

 (Exempt under Paragraphs 8 and 9 of the Act – contractual information) 

 
12. Annual Maintenance Plan 2004/05 (Pages 50 - 78) 

 (Exempt under Paragraphs 8 and 9 of the Act - contract 
negotiations/expenditure proposed to be incurred) 

 
13. Replacement of District Heating Main Distribution Pipes - Vale Road, 

Thrybergh and Mansfield Road, Aston (Pages 79 - 80) 

 (Exempt under Paragraphs 8 and 9 of the Act - Expenditure to be 
incurred/negotiation of terms for supply of goods/services) 

 
14. Electrical Upgrade of Council Properties (Pages 81 - 82) 

 (Exempt under Paragraphs 8 and 9 of the Act - Expenditure to be 
incurred/negotiation of terms for supply of goods/services) 

 
 
15. Contract - Fixed Wire Testing of Domestic Properties (Pages 83 - 84) 

 (Exempt under Paragraphs 8 and 9 of the Act - Expenditure to be 
incurred/negotiation of terms for supply of goods/services) 

 
 



 
 
 

1. Meeting Cabinet Member for Housing and Environmental Services 
  

2. Date of Meeting 10th May 2004  
 
3. Title Recycling Action Plan - Amendment    
 
4. Originating Officer  Adrian Gabriel, Waste Strategy Manager, Tel. Ext. 3108  
 
5. Issue    
5.1 To obtain Member approval to amend the implementation of kerbside recycling 

schemes as contained within the Recycling Action Plan 2003-2006 
 
6. Summary 
6.1 The Recycling Action Plan 2003-2006 provides for a phased introduction of 

kerbside recycling schemes during the life of the plan. It is proposed to amend the 
implementation programme for the current year to allow for the extension of the 
blue box scheme to a further 50,000 premises. This will replace the projected 
scheme of placing 50,000 premises on a kerbside green waste collection service. 

 
7. Clearance/Consultation 
7.1 The Council has recently introduced a pilot scheme for kerbside green waste 

collection using wheeled bins. Full evaluation of this pilot and further consultation 
with “best practice” Council’s is required prior to extending this service across the 
Borough. A number of Council’s have introduced green waste collection schemes 
with varying results, for example a major increase in total waste arisings. 

 
8. Timing 
8.1 The next phase of implementing a kerbside recycling scheme will commence in 

May 2004.  
 
9. Background 
9.1 The Recycling Action Plan was approved by the Cabinet Member of Housing and 

Environmental Services in August 2003 (Housing and Environmental Services, 
11/08/03, Minute No 65). This plan provides for the development of a number of 
initiatives, including the phased implementation of kerbside schemes for recycling 
across the Borough.  

9.2 The first phase of the plan was implemented in September 2003 with the 
implementation of 50,000 premises onto the “Blue Box” scheme collecting glass, 
cans and textiles. 

9.3 In partnership with Barnsley and Doncaster Council’s the award of DEFRA funding 
has allowed us to commence a pilot trial of 12,000 premises on a green waste 
collection scheme with effect from the end of March 2003. 

9.4 In accordance with the Recycling Action Plan it was intended to further extend the 
blue box scheme to another 25,000 premises whilst introducing a kerbside green 
waste collection service to those already served by the Blue Box scheme (Phase 
1). 

9.5 Following discussion with a number of Council’s on green waste schemes it is 
considered that full evaluation of our pilot scheme is required prior to determining 
the future “roll out” of a kerbside collection service. 

9.6 It is therefore, proposed that the Blue Box kerbside collection service is extended 
beyond 25,000 premises, to a total of 50,000 premises within the Borough from 

RROOTTHHEERRHHAAMM  BBOORROOUUGGHH  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  ––  RREEPPOORRTT  TTOO  MMEEMMBBEERRSS  

Agenda Item 3Page 1



May 2004. This will allow a full evaluation exercise and further consultation to be 
undertaken with other Council’s regarding the effects that sizeable implementation 
of a green waste collection service has had on waste arisings within their areas.  

9.7 By adopting this proposal the Blue Box scheme will serve over 95% of households 
across the Borough. This puts the Council in a strong position with regard to 
meeting the requirements of the Household Waste Bill 2004 which requires all 
households within an area to receive a service for the collection of at least two 
recyclable materials by 2010. 

 
10. Argument 
10.1 The full evaluation of the green waste pilot scheme will provide actual information 

on the waste arisings that are being generated from the 12,000 premises on the 
scheme. This will allow us to determine whether waste has increased/ 
decreased/remained the same, due to the extra capacity available, and if there is 
any effects on the levels of green waste presented at our Recycling Centres. There 
is a need to maintain the drive of increasing 

 
11. Risks and Uncertainties 
11.1 Significant public participation is needed to achieve our recycling targets when 

kerbside recycling schemes are introduced. Experience elsewhere suggests that 
there is a risk that as kerbside recycling is introduced, individuals may take the 
opportunity to put more waste in their residual waste dustbin to replace the recycled 
materials they have taken out. Our pilot area of 12,000 premises will provide full 
evaluation on this issue and allow better determination of our strategy on future 
collection services. An increase in waste arisings may have a detrimental affect on 
our LPSA target and key performance indicator (BV 84) for the kilograms of waste 
collected per head. 

 
12. Finance 
12.1 The costs for the phased implementation of kerbside recycling are contained within 

the Waste Management budget and Local Public Service agreement, through 
unsupported credit approvals.  

 
13. Sustainability 
13.1 There is a need to deliver sustainable waste services that promote the re-use, 

recovery and recycling of household waste to protect the environment and sustain 
the earth’s natural resources for future generations. 

 
14. Wards Affected 
14.1     All wards 
 
15. References 
15.1 Recycling Action Plan 2003-2006 
15.2 Cabinet Member for Housing and Environmental Services, 11/08/03, Minute No 65 
 
16. Recommendations  
 
THAT MEMBERS APPROVE: 
 
16.1 Amendment of the Recycling Action Plan as contained within this report to 

enable a Borough wide implementation of the blue box scheme to 100,000 
premises a year ahead of schedule.  

16.2 A full evaluation on the green waste pilot area to be reported after six months 
operation to allow implementation of roll out of the scheme from April 2005. 

Page 2



16.3 A programme of visits to assess the implications of green waste collection in 
other local authorities operating larger scale schemes. 

 

Page 3



 
 
 

1. Meeting Cabinet Member for Housing and Environmental Services  
 
2. Date of Meeting 10th May 2004   
 
3. Title Regular Performance Assessment – Final Report     
 
4. Originating Officer Adrian Gabriel, Waste Strategy Manager, Tel. Ext. 3108  
 
5. Issue    
5.1 To inform Members of the outcome of the recent Regular Performance Assessment of 

the “Environment Block” undertaken in conjunction with the Audit Commission. 
 
6. Summary 
6.1 In October 2003 the Council was instructed by the Audit Commission to undertake a self-

assessment of its Environment Block services under the terms of the Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment model. This exercise was undertaken by officers with 
responsibility for the Transport, Planning and Waste functions of the Council. Following a 
recent evaluation of the Council’s submission by an Audit Commission Inspector, the 
Council has received a positive response that can be used to drive future improvement. 

 
7. Clearance/Consultation 
7.1 The self-assessment exercise on the Environment Block services involved co-operation 

between officers in Housing and Environmental Services and Economic and 
Development Services on cross cutting issues. The submission to the Audit Commission 
was presented to the Cabinet Members for Housing and Environmental Services and 
Economic Development and Planning for final approval. 

 
8. Timing 
8.1 The Audit Commission has recently reported back to the Council on their evaluation of 

our submission. 
 
9. Background 
9.1 In October 2003 the Council was informed that it had been chosen by the Audit 

Commission to “pilot” a new regime of Regular Performance Assessments based on the 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment model. In December 2003 a self assessment 
exercise of the “Environment Block” covering planning, transport and waste was 
completed by officers within Housing and Environmental Services and Economic and 
Development services. The self-assessment document covered four specific areas, 
these being the Corporate Context of the Council, the Quality of Service, the 
Achievement of Improvement and the Capacity to Improve. In relation to the assessment 
of the waste function the self-assessment exercise included for all the collection, 
disposal, recycling and enforcement services provided by Housing and Environmental 
Services, Environmental Health plus the “Streetpride” based waste services operated by 
Economic and Development Services. Following completion and the approval of the 
Cabinet Members for each Programme Area, the document was submitted to the Audit 
Commission for evaluation.  

9.2 In February 2004 as part of a challenge exercise, an inspector from the Audit 
Commission spent three days with the Council interviewing relevant officers and 
undertaking some reality checks on the evidence data presented.  

9.3 In March 2004 the Audit Commission presented their final report on our Regular 
Performance Assessment. The report does provide a positive response to the Council’s 

RROOTTHHEERRHHAAMM  BBOORROOUUGGHH  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  ––  RREEPPOORRTT  TTOO  MMEEMMBBEERRSS  

Agenda Item 4Page 4



assessment of the waste services that we provide and the inspector agreed with the 
service scores we presented within our assessment. Although the report has outlined a 
number of weaknesses in relation to performance, the data used covered our results for 
the key performance indicators for the year end 2002/03. This issue has been challenged 
through our step change in current performance that demonstrates the positive moves 
we have made in the last year. It is accepted further work is required to continue this 
momentum and benchmarking will be undertaken to compare our results and achieve top 
quartile status. 

9.4 The Inspector has also highlighted issues such as working with business to promote 
waste reduction, targets to reduce waste, improve sickness absence and developing re-
use schemes. There is a need to include these elements within our team plans, although 
some of the issues highlighted are being progressed at the present time. 

9.5 The recommendation of the Inspector is that there is sufficient evidence of improvement 
in service quality to recommend a Waste Management Inspection in 2004. 

 
10. Argument 
10.1 The Council’s response to the report has been positive in welcoming an inspection of 

Waste Management. It has also been established that the Audit Commission will use the 
rating they apply to the waste management inspection as the score for the “Environment 
Block” in the forthcoming Corporate Performance Assessment of the Council later this 
year. 

 
11. Risks and Uncertainties 
11.1 The Council has been informed that the waste management inspection will be 

undertaken in July 2004. Presently the Waste Management Unit is heavily committed to 
developing and implementing the next phase of kerbside recycling. A significant 
weakness of our last waste inspection was the failure to have in place a long term Waste 
Strategy.  Capacity and expertise to progress this will be provided through the 
appointment consultants to progress this issue.  Further support and capacity build for 
our Waste Services to ensure we achieve an improved inspection rating and thus 
contribute to the Council’s Corporate Performance Assessment will be needed.  

 
12. Finance 
12.1 The Regular Performance Assessment and our subsequent full inspection were and will 

be contained within the Programme Area and Service Area revenue budgets. 
 
13. Sustainability 
13.1 There is a need to maintain and improve the management of waste to protect the 

environment for future generations. 
 
14. Wards Affected   All wards 
 
15. References 
15.1 Regular Performance Assessment , Self Assessment – December 2003 
15.2 Regular Performance Assessment, Report – April 2004 
15.3 Corporate Performance Assessment 2004 
 
16. Recommendations  
 
16.1 That Members note the content of this report and the positive statements made by 

the RPA inspector, including that we had had “sufficient evidence of improvement 
in service to recommend a Waste management Inspection in 2004”. 

16.2 Members note that the inspection of the Council’s Waste Management CPA block 
is scheduled for July 2004. 

Page 5



16.3 Members recognise the progression of the development of a Long Term Waste 
Strategy via employment of consultants.  

 

Page 6



 
 
1. Meeting Cabinet Member for Housing and Environmental Services 
 
2. Date 10 May 2004 
 
3. Title South Yorkshire Housing Market Renewal Pathfinder – 

Town Centre Feasibility Studies  
 
4. Originating Officer   Patrick Middleton, Development Co-ordinator 

(Rotherham Investment & Development Office x3826 
patrick.middleton@rotherham.gov.uk) 

 
Divisional Manager, John Smales Development Team Manager 
(Rotherham Investment & Development Office x3873 
john.smales@rotherham.gov.uk) 

 
5. Issue 

For Members to note the attached Capital Procedure 1 Form and the 
procurement process proposed for the appointment of consultants to 
undertake a range of preliminary works to inform the implementation of the 
Housing Market Renewal Pathfinder Initiative in Rotherham Town Centre.  

 
6. Summary 

The Town Centre Area Development Framework (ADF) proposes a range 
of preliminary works to be carried out to help inform the implementation of 
the programme.  We are looking to progress four pieces of work over the 
coming months.  They include studies to support the implementation of a 
housing demonstrator project, a Living Over the Shops initiative and 
acquisition strategy in the Westgate area and an examination of potential 
delivery vehicles.  Importantly it will allow the carrying out of an Housing 
Aspiration Study which will enable us to gauge more accurately the level of 
interest within the development sector for mixed use / residential led 
schemes in Rotherham Town Centre.  These pieces of work will be funded 
100% through the Housing Market Renewal Pathfinder Initiative.  

 
7. Clearance / Consultation 

Reports on the progress of the bidding process have been taken to the 
Scrutiny Panel and CMT in December.  We have also held a Member 
workshop on Housing Market Renewal and given a presentation to the 
Area Assembly Chairs.  Update reports have been given to the Town 
Team and Local Strategic Partnership.   The Housing Strategic 
Partnership has also been presented with emerging Town Centre 
proposals on a number of occasions. This partnership includes 
contractors, developers, estate agents and private landlords.   

 
 

 
 
 

RROOTTHHEERRHHAAMM  BBOORROOUUGGHH CCOOUUNNCCIILL –– RREEPPOORRTT TTOO MMEEMMBBEERRSS  
Agenda Item 5Page 7



8. Timing 
 
The completion of the Housing Aspiration Study has been made a 
condition to the carrying out all other elements of the proposed package of 
preliminary studies.  We will look to advance this piece of work in the first 
quarter of 2004/05 to provide sufficient time for all other elements to be 
completed to enable expenditure in 2005/06.  

 
9. Background 
 

The Transform South Yorkshire strategic and policy objectives have been 
interpreted at the local levels of Sheffield, Barnsley, Doncaster and 
Rotherham through the development and production of Area Development 
Frameworks (ADFs). These have been prepared to a common framework 
and: 
 
• Define a sustainable vision for the towns and neighbourhoods and the 

rationale for Housing Market Renewal (HMR) intervention to contribute 
to the vision 
 

• Present a programme of housing based interventions to be supported 
by Transform South Yorkshire related to strategic objectives and key 
themes 
 

• Set the context for other interventions that will support a strategic and 
agreed vision for the future of the area 

 
The Rotherham Town Centre ADF seeks to put forward the principle of 
mixed use urban villages through an incremental development 
programme.  The Town Centre currently has a limited population and few 
residential premises and as such the proposed context of the ADF has the 
fundamental ambition of creating a “stage” for the construction and 
development of a buoyant housing market placed in a vibrant mixed use 
setting.  

 
The ADF has been driven by Rotherham’s Town Team Vision, as part of 
the Renaissance Towns Initiative.  
 
The Vision for the Town Centre foresees the creation of a vibrant mixed 
use Area in which to live, work, trade and spend leisure time in a safe and 
attractive setting with only the highest quality of design of public realm and 
built environment and urban fabric. 

 
10. Argument 
 

It is envisaged that the findings of these important and fundamental pieces 
of work will provide an independent and objective assessment of the 
potential for delivering residential developments in the town centre. 

 

Page 8



The Housing Aspiration Study (£20,000 - £30,000 – 100% HMRP funded) 
in accordance with Standing Order 43.5.C we will invite three written 
quotations when commissioning this piece of work.    

 
The Demonstrator Project Feasibility Study (£300,000 - £400,000 – 100% 
HMRP funded) in accordance with Standing Orders and European 
Regulations this will be commissioned through a Restricted OJEC Notice 
procedure. 

 
Westgate Hillside Feasibility and Acquisition Strategy (£30,000 - £47,500 – 
100% HMRP funded) in accordance with Standing Order 43.5.C we will 
invite three written quotations when commissioning this piece of work.    

 
The LOTS Study (£10,000 - £14,350 – 100% HMRP funded) in 
accordance with Standing Order 43.5.B we will invite at least two oral or 
written quotations when commissioning this piece of work.  

 
Delivery Vehicle Study (£40,000 - £47,500 – 100% HMRP funded) in 
accordance with Standing Order 43.5.C we will invite three written 
quotations when commissioning this piece of work. 

 
Please refer to the attached Capital Procedure 1 Form for further 
information. 

 
11. Risks and Uncertainties 
 

The outcome of the Housing Aspiration Study is a condition of the 
Agreement between the Participating Authorities and the ODPM which will 
determine whether the remainder of the proposed works within the 
Rotherham Town Centre ADF area are permitted to proceed.  

 
12.Finance 
 

The projects outlined in section 10 are to be financed through the Housing 
Market Renewal Pathfinder Initiative.  The costs of managing these studies 
through Economic Development Services can also be claimed against 
Housing Market Renewal Pathfinder funds.  

 
12. Sustainability 
 

The package of works outlined in section 10 meet the Council’s strategy 
for regenerating and revitalising the town centre, building on work taken 
forward through the Objective 1 Programme and Yorkshire Forward’s 
Renaissance Towns Initiative.  They will help bring forward new high 
quality developments within and on under utilised sites and premises.  

 
13. Wards Affected 
 

Central 
 

Page 9



14.  References 
 

Appendix 1 – Town Centre ADF Area 
Appendix 2 – CP1 

 
15. Presentation 
 

The Housing Market Renewal Pathfinder Initiative is a welcome addition to 
the programmes and initiatives being employed by this Council to take 
forward the regeneration and revitalisation of Rotherham Town Centre.  

 
16.  Recommendations 

 
Members accept the attached Capital Procedure 1 Form in respect of 
the Town Centre Housing Market Renewal Pathfinder and note the 
procurement processes, which are in accordance with Council 
Standing Orders and Financial Regulations. 
 

Page 10



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL   
CAPITAL PROJECTS PROCEDURE               
CP1 
 

Issue: 02 Date: 07/11/01 

FORM 

________________________________________________________________________ 

THE GUIDANCE NOTES SHOULD BE FOLLOWED WHEN COMPLETING THIS FORM. 

1.0 GENERAL INFORMATION 

1.01 Programme Area:   Economic and Development Service 

1.02 Project Title/Number: Housing Market Renewal (Town Centre ADF) Feasibility 
Studies 

1.03 Contact Officer:   Malcolm Meekins 

1.04 Cost Code:    

 

2.0 PROJECT JUSTIFICATION 

2.01 Which Corporate Plan Core Value(s) does the project meet? 

 
1. Putting people first and ensuring fairness and equity in service delivery – 

this first phase of feasibility work aims to establish what the housing 
aspirations are and seek to expand the choice and quality of housing 
available to the people of Rotherham and the sub-region. 

 
2. Ensuring effective consultation and involvement – This feasibility phase of 

the project includes consultation with and the involvement of all 
stakeholders and those affected by the project.  

 
3. Working in partnership – The implementation of the project will be carried 

out in partnership with Housing Services, existing businesses in the Town 
Centre, Town Team, Transform South Yorkshire (the Pathfinder), CABE and 
private developers.  

 
5.   Promoting sustainable development – The Town Centre has excellent 

transportation infrastructure and a wide range of amenities and facilities 
which make it a sustainable location for housing, yet currently it has a 
limited population and few residential premises.  The Rotherham Town 
Centre ADF seeks to put forward the principle of sustainable mixed use 
urban villages through an incremental development programme of high 
quality developments within and on underused sites and premises.  

 

2.02 Which Corporate Plan Strategic Objective(s) does the project meet? 

 
i) A place to live - ensuring the highest possible design and build quality in 

new developments and ensuring types and mixes of housing that attract 
new people and encourage them to stay.  

Page 11



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL   
CAPITAL PROJECTS PROCEDURE               
CP1 
 

Issue: 02 Date: 07/11/01 

FORM 

ii) A place for enjoyment – the Town Centre ADF envisages a vibrant mixed 
use environment where people will come to live work and play 

iii) A safe place – Secure by Design principles will be used/encouraged in all 
new developments  

 

2.03 How does the project meet Service Delivery Plan Objectives? 
 
The feasibility is the first phase of the implementation of the Pathfinder in the Town 
Centre and consists of the following: 
 

• Housing Market and Aspiration Study  
• The Demonstrator Project Feasibility Study 
• Westgate Hillside Feasibility and Acquisition Strategy 
• The LOTS Study  
• Delivery Vehicle Study  

 
These studies will inform the Implementation of the development phase, which will 
contribute to the Regeneration Plan and in turn the Community Strategy. 
 
It will: 
 
i) focus development on derelict/underused sites in the Town Centre area, 

providing and excellent and sustainable environment for business 
ii) re-populate the town Centre and rebalance the housing market by providing 

sustainable neighbourhoods of quality, choice and aspiration.  
iii) contribute towards achieving a Rotherham Town Renaissance, by 

populating the Town’s centre, ensuring the river and canal form a key part of 
the Town’s future 

iv) Improve openspace, ensuring the highest possible design and build quality 
in new developments and ensuring types and mixes of housing that attract 
new people and encourage them to stay.  

 

2.04 Statutory Requirement:  (No         Partial         Yes        ) 

……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

2.05 Option Appraisal:  (No        Partial         Yes         ) 
 
The outcomes of the feasibility stage will provide sufficient information for the 
project to proceed to the implementation phase and provide evidence to convince 
funding partners of the value of the project and will encourage support for project 
implementation. 
 
To deliver these outcomes a number of options were considered:  
i) the use of internal staff resource to undertake the exercise both from 

Housing Services and Economic Development Services, 

x

 x

Page 12



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL   
CAPITAL PROJECTS PROCEDURE               
CP1 
 

Issue: 02 Date: 07/11/01 

FORM 

ii) the selection of consultants with the right skills to support the development 
of the project appointed by RMBC,  

iii) no feasibility work undertaken at all. 

The preferred option is option ii). 

 
 

2.06 Release of a Capital Asset: (No        Partial         Yes        ) 

……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

2.07 Cross-Cutting: (No        Partial         Yes        ) 

 
The overall HMR programme is being led by Housing Services. However, it has 
been agreed that EDS will take responsibility for delivering the Town Centre 
activity.  

 

2.08 Endorsed/Supported by Non-Funding Partners:  Yes 
 

Update reports have been given to the Town Team, Local Strategic Partnership 
Area Assembly Chairs and the Housing Strategic Partnership, this partnership 
includes contractors, developers, estate agents and private landlords.  
All these bodies are supporting the proposals. 
  

 

x

x

Page 13



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL   
CAPITAL PROJECTS PROCEDURE               
CP1 
 

Issue: 02 Date: 07/11/01 

FORM 

 

3.0 INDICATIVE PROGRAMME 

              FROM TO 

3.01 Brief/Design March 2004 April 2004 

3.02 Tender Period(s) May 2004 July 2004 

3.03 Contract Works June 2004 March 2005 

3.04 Commission Period ……………………………… ………………………………

3.05 Comment on any milestones/conditions regarding grant or other funding relative 
to programme: 

Grant funding bids for the studies have been submitted to Transform South 
Yorkshire and a decision will be given at the end of April 2004. 

……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

4.0 FORECASTED CAPITAL COSTS AND FUNDING: 

4.01 Estimated Capital Costs 

 2004/05   
£ 

2005/06   
£ 

2006/07   
£ 

2007/08   
£ 

TOTAL    
£ 

Land: 

Site Investigation: 

Construction: 

Furniture/Equipment: 

Project Fee Allowance: 

Contingencies: 

 

   645,401 

 

 

    33,849 

   

   

 

 

   645,401 

 

 

   33,849 

    

TOTAL COSTS   679,250    679,250 
 
 

Page 14



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL   
CAPITAL PROJECTS PROCEDURE               
CP1 
 

Issue: 02 Date: 07/11/01 

FORM 

 

4.02 Funding:  

Source: (Specify) 2004/05   
£ 

2005/06  £ 2006/07  
£ 

2007/08  
£ 

TOTAL   £ 

A  Housing Pathfinder             
Renewal 

679,250  679,250

B    

C  

D  

E  

SUB TOTAL FUNDING 679,250  679,250

FUNDING REQUESTED 0  0

TOTAL FUNDING 679,250  679,250
 
 

4.03 Status of Funding: 

A Funding applied for to carry out site investigations/feasibility studies.  

B  

C  

D  

E 

 

 

 

Page 15



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL   
CAPITAL PROJECTS PROCEDURE               
CP1 
 

Issue: 02 Date: 07/11/01 

FORM 

 

5.0 REVENUE IMPLICATIONS 

5.01 Impact: None        Additional Cost        Savings  

5.02 COSTINGS/SAVINGS 

Revenue Budget 
Heading 

2001/02   
£ 

2002/03   
£ 

2003/04   
£ 

2004/05   
£ 

2005/06   
£ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     

      

5.03 Comments/Assumptions: 
…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

…………………………………………………………………………………………… 

……………………………………………………………………………………………

 

6.0 ASSUMPTIONS/RISKS/CONSULTATIONS 
 
The initial stages of the project are to carry out feasibility studies to develop 
strategies for the implementation of practical solutions to restructure and renew 
the housing market within the Town Centre.  
 
The first piece of work is a Housing Aspiration Study which will provide an 
evidence base for the development of a new housing market in the Town Centre. 
The positive outcome of this study will determine how the proposed works within 
the Town Centre ADF are to proceed and will be the basis to secure HMR 
Pathfinder funding for their implementation. 
 
Relevant external bodies, Town Team, and the landowners/ tenants of any 
land/properties affected will be consulted throughout the project. 
 
 
 

x

Page 16



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL   
CAPITAL PROJECTS PROCEDURE               
CP1 
 

Issue: 02 Date: 07/11/01 

FORM 

 

Page 17



 
 
1. Meeting CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

   
 

2. Date of Meeting  10 May 2004  
 
 
3. Title   HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY 2003-2008 

    REPORT ON CURRENT PROGRESS AGAINST ACTION 
PLAN 

    
 

4. Originating Officer Linda Main 
Housing Needs Co-ordinator , Ext. 3429  

      
 

5. Issue 
 The Homelessness Strategy identifies three Strategic Objectives which will be 

progressed and monitored through the implementation of the Action Plan developed in 
conjunction with the Strategy. 

 
A copy of the Action Plan is attached (Appendix A) showing achievements to date and 
plans for future action. 

 
6. Summary 

The Council’s Homelessness Strategy was published on 31 July 2003, and identifies 
three Strategic Objectives: 
 
1. To reduce homelessness through appropriate prevention measures 
2. To ensure appropriate accommodation and support services are available 
3. To improve information and service quality 
 
The Action Plan identifies the work needed to achieve these Objectives 

 
7. Clearance/Consultation    

• Homelessness Core Group 
• Multi-Agency Events 
• Consultation with individual Agencies on specific milestones within Action Plan 
• Homelessness Strategy supported for publication by Cabinet Member for Housing 

and Environmental Services 31.7.03. 
 
8. Timing 

 Although the Homelessness Strategy has a life of five years it will be reviewed, 
monitored and improved regularly during its lifecycle. 
 
Regular reports are to be made to the Cabinet Member for Housing and Environmental 
Services outlining progress against the Strategy Action Plan. 

 

RROOTTHHEERRHHAAMM  BBOORROOUUGGHH CCOOUUNNCCIILL –– RREEPPOORRTT TTOO MMEEMMBBEERRSS  

Agenda Item 6Page 18



9. Background 
 The Homelessness Act 2002 required all local authorities to review their homelessness 

services, identify the extent and main causes of homelessness in their area and to 
develop a Homelessness Strategy by 31 July, 2003. 

 
 

Under the provisions of the Act the Strategy must identify the Authority’s plans to: 
 
• Prevent homelessness 
• Secure availability of accommodation for homeless people 
• Secure satisfactory support services 
 
These provisions underpin the Government commitment to improving the quality of life 
for individuals and households and preventing and intervening as early as possible 
when homelessness is likely to become an issue. 

  
10. Argument 

The prevention of homelessness has been established as a priority by the 
Government, recognising the impact of homelessness on health, education, 
sustainable communities and social inclusion. 
 
The number of homelessness applications in Rotherham over the last four years has 
risen substantially, from 1646 in 1998/99 to 2180 in 2002/03. 
 
The work required to prevent homelessness will need to be addressed through a 
partnership approach involving social services, health services, probation services, 
registered social landlords, private landlords and voluntary agencies. 
 
There are clear links between Rotherham’s Community Strategy and identified 
corporate priorities and the objectives of the Homelessness Strategy (Appendix B). 

 
11. Risks and Uncertainties 

 The Council and its partners must deliver on the key priorities within the 
homelessness Strategy. 
 
A risk analysis is contained within the Strategy which identifies six areas of risk (three 
low risk, one medium and two high risk) (Appendix C). 
 
The two areas of High Risk identified are: 
 

• Lack of resources to deliver the Strategy 
• Opposition from local communities in connection with accommodation and support 

provision 
 
Safeguards to minimise the risks are contained in the Strategy and will need to be 
monitored. 
 
Delivery against the Strategy cannot be achieved by the Council alone.  It is vital that 
effective and committed partnerships are developed and sustained. 
 
Staffing resources within the Homelessness Team have been difficult over the last 
twelve months with reliance on temporary agency staff to maintain day to day 

Page 19



performance.  Slippages have occurred in some areas of work associated with the 
Strategy as appropriate staffing resources have not been available. 
 
Proposals have been made to streamline the working of the Homelessness Team and 
to improve efficiency and effectiveness and are due to be implemented in the 
forthcoming restructuring process. 
 
 
 

12. Finance 
 The Strategy identifies the need for the financial consequences to be evaluated and 

fed into the Council’s integrated business and financial planning regime. 
 
There is a need to combine resources with partners and to attract external funding. 
 
The staffing resources used are being met from the Housing General Fund and the 
Housing Revenue Account. 
 
The Homelessness Directorate of ODPM has made some funding available, 
particularly to help authorities reduce bed and breakfast usage and to reduce levels 
of rough sleeping.  In 2002/03 and 2003/04 Rotherham has received a grant of 
£31,000 per annum with recent confirmation of the same grant level for 2004/05. 
 
The Supporting People framework and the funding of floating tenancy support 
schemes through the Supporting People initiative will improve and monitor the quality 
of services that help vulnerable people to maintain their accommodation (Appendix 
D). 

 
13. Sustainability 

 Achieving the objectives of the Homelessness Strategy is a key part of the wider policy 
and strategic framework and will help to promote the economic and social well being of 
the Borough, leading to a better quality of life for residents. 
 
One of the key aims of sustainable development is to ensure that quality housing is 
available for everyone, with particular emphasis on availability of housing for people in 
need allied to services that enable people to maintain their tenancies. 
 
Delivery of the objectives and the promotion of joint working with partners is an 
integral part of developing sustainable communities and ensuring fair access to 
housing for vulnerable people across a diverse community. 

 
14. Wards Affected 
 All 

 
15. References 

  Housing Act 1996, Parts VI and VII 
Homelessness Act 2002 
Housing Strategy 
Homelessness Review 
Homelessness Strategy 2003-2008 

Page 20



 
16. Presentation 

  See background and argument. 
 

17. Recommendations 
 THAT THE REPORT IS RECEIVED AND THE PROGRESS AGAINST THE ACTION 

PLAN IS NOTED. 
 
  

Page 21



 

 
1

R
O

TH
ER

H
A

M
 M

B
C

: H
O

M
EL

ES
SN

ES
S 

ST
R

A
TE

G
Y 

- A
C

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
PP

EN
D

IX
 A

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
O

bj
ec

tiv
e:

 1
: T

o 
re

du
ce

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 

 O
ut

co
m

e:
  R

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f h
om

el
es

s 
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

 b
y 

10
%

, a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 g

oo
d 

qu
al

ity
, t

im
el

y 
ad

vi
ce

 ta
ilo

re
d 

to
 in

di
vi

du
al

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t H

ou
si

ng
 a

dv
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

e,
 p

er
so

na
l h

ou
si

ng
 p

la
ns

 a
nd

 m
ed

ia
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
by

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
5.

 
  A

ct
io

n 
 

 M
ile

st
on

es
 

 En
d 

D
at

e 
 

 A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 

 Fu
tu

re
 A

ct
io

n 

1.
1 

                    

 M
ar

ke
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 

 D
ev

el
op

 5
 y

ea
r m

ar
ke

tin
g 

pl
an

. 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

se
rv

ic
e 

di
re

ct
or

y.
 

Pr
od

uc
e 

le
af

le
ts

/p
os

te
rs

. 
 

1 
O

ct
. 

‘0
3 

• 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

in
 p

la
ce

:  
 • 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l l
ea

fle
ts

 
an

d 
po

st
er

s 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

nd
 d

is
tri

bu
te

d 
to

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 (s

am
pl

e 
en

c.
) 

• 
M

on
th

ly
 c

us
to

m
er

/a
ge

nc
y 

ne
w

sl
et

te
r, 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
fro

m
 D

ec
 0

3.
 (s

am
pl

e 
en

c.
)

• 
Vi

de
o 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

gi
vi

ng
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

an
d 

Ad
vi

ce
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
D

ec
 0

3 
an

d 
no

w
 

di
sp

la
ye

d 
in

 a
ll 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 O

ffi
ce

s
• 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
r q

ua
rte

rly
 

M
ul

ti-
Ag

en
cy

 A
w

ar
en

es
s 

Ev
en

ts
 

(p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
 v

ia
 e

xh
ib

iti
on

). 
• 

M
ul

ti-
Ag

en
cy

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

da
y 

he
ld

 S
ep

 
03

 w
ith

 a
ro

un
d 

60
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
ta

ki
ng

 p
ar

t a
nd

 
pr

es
s 

co
ve

ra
ge

. 
 • 

D
ire

ct
or

y 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 1
10

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
in

 
R

ot
he

rh
am

.  
• 

R
ic

oc
he

t L
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 –
 re

-p
ro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 S

he
lte

r’s
 A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
D

ire
ct

or
y 

fo
r S

ou
th

 Y
or

ks
hi

re
 fo

r a
ge

nc
y 

us
e 

 • 
R

M
BC

 –
 P

oc
ke

t G
ui

de
 to

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

od
uc

ed
 fo

r c
us

to
m

er
s.

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ob
ta

in
ed

 fr
om

 re
le

va
nt

 a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 w

ith
 d

es
ig

n 
st

ud
io

 fo
r 

pr
od

uc
tio

n.
 (s

am
pl

e 
en

c.
) 

  

• 
O

ng
oi

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 5
 

ye
ar

 m
ar

ke
tin

g 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

Pr
op

er
ty

 S
ho

p 
an

d 
R

oa
d 

Sh
ow

’s
. 

              • 
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
nd

er
 c

ol
la

tio
n,

 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

M
ay

 0
4.

 
• 

To
 b

e 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 A
pr

il 
04

. 
 • 

Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f I

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 

H
ou

si
ng

 A
dv

ic
e 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 

Page 22



 

 
2

 1.
2 

 U
nd

er
ta

ke
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
w

or
k 

in
 s

ch
oo

ls
 

 En
ga

ge
 h

ea
d 

te
ac

he
rs

. 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

tra
in

in
g/

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

 p
ac

ks
. 

 

 1 
Ja

n.
 

‘0
4 

• 
R

ic
oc

he
t L

ed
 –

 P
ee

r E
du

ca
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

w
ith

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 R
ic

oc
he

t e
m

pl
oy

in
g 

fu
ll 

tim
e 

Pe
er

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 H
ea

d 
Te

ac
he

rs
/E

du
ca

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

. 
 • 

Aw
ar

en
es

s 
ra

is
in

g/
pr

ev
en

ta
tiv

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 P

ee
r 

Pr
es

en
te

rs
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

pe
rs

on
al

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 h

om
el

es
sn

es
s.

 T
w

o 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 S
ch

oo
ls

 e
ng

ag
ed

 to
 

da
te

. R
es

ou
rc

e 
pa

ck
s 

pr
od

uc
ed

. 

• 
Fo

llo
w

in
g 

po
si

tiv
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 
fro

m
 te

ac
he

rs
 a

nd
 p

up
ils

– 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
to

 b
e 

ro
lle

d 
ou

t t
o 

al
l C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 S
ch

oo
ls

. 
 • 

Li
nk

 to
 b

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
w

ith
 

Yo
ut

h 
C

ab
in

et
. 

1.
3 

 Es
ta

bl
is

h 
cl

ea
r l

in
ks

 
w

ith
 p

ris
on

s 

 Es
ta

bl
is

h 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 o
ut

pu
ts

. 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

lin
ks

/o
ut

re
ac

h 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

D
ev

el
op

 p
ris

on
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pa

ck
. 

Ev
al

ua
te

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
an

d 
be

ne
fit

s.
 

C
on

tin
ue

/e
xp

an
d 

if 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

. 

 1 
Ja

n 
‘0

4 

• 
N

ee
d 

fo
r H

ou
si

ng
 A

dv
is

or
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ith

in
 H

M
P’

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
ga

p 
in

 re
se

ttl
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
. 

 • 
Vi

si
te

d 
lo

ca
l D

on
ca

st
er

 p
ris

on
’s

 –
 

ou
tre

ac
h 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
  

 • 
Vi

de
o 

co
nf

er
en

ci
ng

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

Ja
n 

04
, g

iv
in

g 
re

gu
la

r l
in

ks
 w

ith
 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 a
ss

is
ta

nc
e.

 
 • 

Pr
is

on
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Pa

ck
 u

nd
er

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 • 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 P
la

n 
ar

ou
nd

 li
nk

s 
to

 
re

se
ttl

em
en

t a
nd

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

 
 • 

Jo
in

t m
ee

tin
g 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

w
ith

 
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

Pe
op

le
 T

ea
m

, P
ro

ba
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
Ac

tio
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
.

• 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 o

ut
re

ac
h 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

  
 • 

M
on

ito
r b

en
ef

its
 e

.g
. 

su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
of

 te
na

nc
ie

s.
  

 • 
D

ev
el

op
 n

ew
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 li

nk
s 

w
ith

 C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 S
up

po
rti

ng
 

Pe
op

le
 T

ea
m

. 
 • 

D
ev

el
op

 im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

w
ith

 R
SL

’s
 to

 a
ss

is
t w

ith
 

re
se

ttl
em

en
t. 

• 
Ex

pl
or

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r 
su

ita
bl

e 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
re

ho
us

in
g 

to
 re

du
ce

 li
nk

s 
w

ith
 

ex
-o

ffe
nd

er
s’

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
hi

st
or

y.
 

Page 23



 

 
3

 1.
4 

 In
cr

ea
se

 h
ou

si
ng

 
ad

vi
ce

 

 Id
en

tif
y 

du
pl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

ga
ps

 in
 a

dv
ic

e/
te

na
nc

y 
re

la
tio

ns
. 

Ag
re

e 
pr

io
rit

y 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 

 1 
N

ov
. 

‘0
3 

• 
Pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
of

 P
oc

ke
t G

ui
de

 to
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 w
ill 

id
en

tif
y 

bo
th

 d
up

lic
at

io
n 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

ga
ps

 in
 a

dv
ic

e 
(o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

1.
1)

.  
 • 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

w
ith

 a
ll 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 H

ou
si

ng
 O

ffi
ce

s 
on

 
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

Ad
vi

ce
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 D

ec
 0

3.
 

 • 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 S

el
f A

ss
es

sm
en

t F
or

m
 

fo
r C

us
to

m
er

s.
 

 • 
‘F

re
qu

en
tly

 A
sk

ed
 Q

ue
st

io
ns

 a
nd

 
An

sw
er

s 
ab

ou
t H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

G
ui

de
’ 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
nd

 n
ow

 g
iv

en
 to

 a
ll 

ho
m

el
es

s 
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

. 
 • 

Po
rtf

ol
io

 o
f P

riv
at

e 
La

nd
lo

rd
s.

 
 • 

H
ou

si
ng

 O
pt

io
ns

 P
ac

k 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
dv

ic
e.

 
 • 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f “

dr
op

 in
” s

er
vi

ce
s 

by
 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
m

on
th

ly
 a

dv
is

or
y 

su
rg

er
ie

s 
e.

g.
 a

t 
C

om
m

un
ity

 A
lc

oh
ol

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 • 

M
ee

tin
g 

ar
ra

ng
ed

 1
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
4 

w
ith

 
Ba

rn
sl

ey
, S

he
ffi

el
d 

an
d 

D
on

ca
st

er
 

C
ou

nc
ils

 to
 lo

ok
 a

t e
xa

m
pl

es
 o

f g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

St
ra

te
gi

es
. 

• 
To

 b
e 

pr
od

uc
ed

 A
pr

il 
04

 
        • 

An
tic

ip
at

ed
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
en

d 
M

ar
ch

 0
4 

          • 
To

 b
e 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

in
g 

of
 H

om
el

es
s 

Te
am

. 
 • 

Be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

Be
ac

on
 C

ou
nc

ils
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. 

• 
Pr

op
os

al
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
‘in

 h
ou

se
’ 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t H

ou
si

ng
 A

dv
ic

e 
Se

rv
ic

e.
  

 1.
5 

 Es
ta

bl
is

h 
he

lp
lin

e 
 Id

en
tif

y 
co

st
s 

in
cl

. f
re

ep
ho

ne
 o

pt
io

n.
 

D
ev

el
op

 re
so

ur
ce

 p
ac

k.
 

Tr
ai

n 
he

lp
lin

e 
st

af
f. 

Id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

co
st

 in
te

rp
re

tin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

is
e 

nu
m

be
r. 

Ev
al

ua
te

 –
 c

on
tin

ue
 if

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e.
 

 1 
N

ov
. 

‘0
3 

• 
Fr

ee
, c

on
fid

en
tia

l d
ire

ct
 p

ho
ne

 li
ne

s 
to

 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

U
ni

t n
ow

 in
st

al
le

d 
at

 
ea

ch
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 H
ou

si
ng

 O
ffi

ce
. 

 • 
Fr

ee
 te

le
ph

on
e 

nu
m

be
r p

ub
lic

is
ed

 v
ia

 
po

st
er

s.
  

 • 
La

ng
ua

ge
 li

ne
 g

iv
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

bo
th

 in
 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
U

ni
t a

nd
 a

ll 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 O
ffi

ce
s

• 
Ad

di
tio

na
l i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

re
: 

he
lp

lin
e 

to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

R
es

ou
rc

e 
Pa

ck
. 

 • 
Fu

tu
re

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
as

 to
 u

se
 o

f R
ot

he
rh

am
 

C
on

ne
ct

 (l
on

g 
te

rm
 h

el
pl

in
e)

. 
  

Page 24



 

 
4

 1.
6 

 D
ev

el
op

 p
er

so
na

l 
ho

us
in

g 
pl

an
s 

 D
ra

ft 
fra

m
ew

or
k 

fo
r p

la
ns

. 
C

on
su

lt 
se

rv
ic

es
 u

se
rs

.  
R

un
 p

ilo
t. 

 
Ev

al
ua

te
 - 

of
fe

r s
er

vi
ce

 if
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e.

 
 

 1 
Ap

r. 
‘0

4 

• 
Pr

oc
es

s 
M

ap
s/

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 d

ev
el

op
ed

. 
 • 

Pi
lo

t s
ch

em
e 

to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
fo

r 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s 

on
 p

er
so

na
l h

ou
si

ng
 

pl
an

s 
 

• 
Pi

lo
t t

o 
be

 in
tro

du
ce

d 
M

ar
ch

 
04

 w
ith

 s
am

pl
e 

of
 a

pp
lic

an
ts

 
fro

m
 H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

U
ni

t 

 1.
7 

 In
cr

ea
se

 li
fe

sk
ills

 
 Id

en
tif

y 
pr

io
rit

y 
cl

ie
nt

 g
ro

up
(s

). 
D

ev
el

op
 tr

ai
ni

ng
/s

up
po

rt 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

Id
en

tif
y 

fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

er
 fo

r p
ilo

t 
Ev

al
ua

te
 –

 c
on

tin
ue

/e
xp

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

if 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e.

 
 

 1 
Ap

r. 
‘0

4 

• 
Fo

rm
er

 p
ris

on
er

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

pr
io

rit
y 

cl
ie

nt
 g

ro
up

.  
 • 

Su
pp

or
tin

g 
Pe

op
le

 –
Fl

oa
tin

g 
Su

pp
or

t 
Se

rv
ic

es
 fu

nd
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

Ac
tio

n 
H

ou
si

ng
. 

• 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
w

ith
 S

up
po

rti
ng

 
Pe

op
le

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 
• 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 A
ct

io
n 

H
ou

si
ng

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

le
ve

l o
f 

lif
es

ki
lls

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
  

 1.
8 

 Es
ta

bl
is

h 
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
e(

s)
 

 Ag
re

e 
pr

io
rit

y 
gr

ou
ps

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
. 

C
os

t s
er

vi
ce

 b
ef

or
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g.

 
D

ev
el

op
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

ou
tp

ut
s.

 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
r(s

) f
or

 p
ilo

t. 
Ev

al
ua

te
 - 

co
nt

in
ue

/e
xp

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

if 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

. 
 

 1 
N

ov
. 

‘0
3 

• 
Be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 o

f m
ed

ia
tio

n 
sc

he
m

es
 

un
de

rta
ke

n.
  

 • 
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
M

ed
ia

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n.
 R

e:
 

su
ita

bi
lit

y 
fo

r h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

– 
fo

un
d 

no
t t

o 
be

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. 
 • 

M
ed

ia
tio

n 
Pi

lo
t t

o 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

Ap
ril

 0
4.

 
 • 

Le
af

le
t a

ro
un

d 
m

ed
ia

tio
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

un
de

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
   

• 
Id

en
tif

y 
on

go
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fo
r 

co
nt

in
ua

tio
n 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 p

ilo
t. 

 

Page 25



 

 
5

  O
bj

ec
tiv

e:
 2

: T
o 

en
su

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

nd
 ti

m
el

y 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

 O
ut

co
m

e:
  E

lim
in

at
io

n 
of

 u
se

 o
f b

ed
 a

nd
 b

re
ak

fa
st

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 n

um
be

r o
f u

ni
ts

 o
f t

em
po

ra
ry

 a
nd

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ov
er

ni
gh

t 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
to

 3
2 

un
its

 in
 to

ta
l b

y 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
4.

 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 C
ho

ic
e 

B
as

ed
 L

et
tin

gs
 S

ch
em

e 
by

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
00

4 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

te
na

nc
ie

s.
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f r

ef
er

ra
l p

ro
ce

ss
es

 to
 fl

oa
tin

g 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

Pe
op

le
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 

  A
ct

io
n 

 
 M

ile
st

on
es

 
 En

d 
D

at
e 

 

 A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 

 Fu
tu

re
 A

ct
io

n 

 2.
1 

 En
su

rin
g 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

Ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

an
d 

Su
pp

or
t 

 Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 th

or
ou

gh
 re

vi
ew

 
do

cu
m

en
t o

f t
he

 O
ut

 o
f H

ou
rs

 
Se

rv
ic

e.
 

 1 
O

ct
 

.‘0
3 

• 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

 
‘O

ut
  o

f H
ou

rs
’ p

ho
ne

 s
er

vi
ce

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
 

   • 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 4
 u

ni
ts

 o
f 

ov
er

ni
gh

t e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 

th
ro

ug
h 

ou
t o

f h
ou

rs
 s

er
vi

ce
 

vi
a 

co
de

d 
do

or
 e

nt
ry

 s
ys

te
m

. 

• 
To

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 a

 re
cr

ui
tm

en
t d

riv
e 

to
 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f s
ta

ff 
on

 th
e 

ou
t o

f h
ou

rs
 p

ho
ne

 ro
ta

. 
• 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l f

ro
m

 A
pr

il 
04

. 
 • 

To
 c

on
si

de
r a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
op

tio
ns

 fo
r t

he
 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 a

n 
ou

t o
f h

ou
rs

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 

th
e 

ho
m

el
es

s.
 

 • 
To

 re
vi

ew
 th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f t

he
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

us
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

fo
r h

om
el

es
s 

cl
ie

nt
s 

ag
ai

ns
t s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
st

an
da

rd
s.

 
 2.

2 
 Pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 d

ire
ct

 
ac

ce
ss

 s
er

vi
ce

s 

 Id
en

tif
y 

ca
pi

ta
l a

nd
 re

ve
nu

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 re

so
ur

ce
s.

 
Sc

op
e 

th
e 

sc
he

m
e(

s)
. 

Id
en

tif
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 

de
liv

er
y 

pa
rtn

er
s.

 
Se

ek
 c

ap
ita

l a
nd

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 re
ve

nu
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

gu
ar

an
te

es
. 

D
ev

el
op

 s
er

vi
ce

(s
) i

f f
un

di
ng

 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 
 

 1 
Ja

n.
 

‘0
4 

• 
R

ot
he

rh
am

 H
om

el
es

s 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
ha

ve
 re

ce
iv

ed
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
 to

 c
on

ve
rt 

fo
rm

er
 

W
hi

te
 S

w
an

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

 fo
r 

us
e 

as
 d

ire
ct

 a
cc

es
s 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n.

   
 • 

Jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 S
up

po
rti

ng
 

Pe
op

le
, A

ct
io

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 

H
al

la
m

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
oc

ie
ty

 to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

D
is

pe
rs

ed
 H

ou
si

ng
 

Sc
he

m
e 

at
 E

llio
t C

ou
rt.

• 
R

ot
he

rh
am

 H
om

el
es

s 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 e

xp
lo

rin
g 

op
tio

ns
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t t
hr

ou
gh

 lo
ca

l C
hu

rc
he

s,
 

C
ha

rit
ab

le
 O

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

Pe
op

le
. 

Page 26



 

 
6

 2.
3 

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
ho

us
in

g 

 Id
en

tif
y 

pr
io

rit
y 

gr
ou

ps
. 

Id
en

tif
y 

pa
rtn

er
s.

 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

an
d 

co
nf

irm
 u

ni
ts

 n
ee

de
d.

 
Id

en
tif

y 
po

te
nt

ia
l s

to
ck

. 
Id

en
tif

y 
ho

us
in

g 
m

an
ag

em
en

t c
os

ts
. 

C
os

t r
ef

ur
bi

sh
m

en
t w

or
ks

. 
Id

en
tif

y 
ad

di
tio

na
l s

up
po

rt 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ne
ed

ed
. 

C
os

t a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
su

pp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 u
se

 o
f a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n.
 

 

 1 
Ap

r. 
‘0

4 

• 
Id

en
tif

ie
d 

pr
io

rit
y 

gr
ou

ps
 a

s 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

ap
pl

ic
an

ts
.  

 • 
Id

en
tif

ie
d 

ne
ed

 fo
r 2

0 
U

ni
ts

 o
f 

di
sp

er
se

d 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
fo

r h
om

el
es

s 
an

d 
fu

rth
er

 1
0 

fo
r f

or
m

er
 

as
yl

um
 s

ee
ke

rs
. 

 • 
17

 d
is

pe
rs

ed
 u

ni
ts

 a
re

 
op

er
at

io
na

l a
nd

 4
 u

ni
ts

 a
re

 
be

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

r o
ve

rn
ig

ht
 

st
ay

s.
 

 • 
D

ev
el

op
 2

 u
ni

ts
 o

f t
em

po
ra

ry
 

m
ov

e 
on

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

fro
m

 W
om

en
’s

 R
ef

u g
e.

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t/m
on

ito
rin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 o

f s
ch

em
e.

 
          • 

O
ne

 u
ni

t o
f f

am
ily

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
un

de
r p

re
pa

ra
tio

n.
  

C
on

tin
ui

ng
 to

 s
ee

k 
fu

rth
er

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
un

it.
 

Page 27



 

 
7

 2.
4 

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 b

y 
ho

m
el

es
s 

pe
op

le
 

 C
on

fir
m

 u
ni

t n
um

be
rs

 n
ee

de
d.

 
M

ax
im

is
e 

us
e 

of
 s

.1
06

 a
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 
an

d 
H

IP
.  

En
su

re
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 re

gi
on

al
 

an
d 

su
b 

re
gi

on
al

 p
rio

rit
ie

s 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

ca
pi

ta
l f

un
di

ng
. 

Id
en

tif
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

ar
tn

er
s.

 
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
re

-d
es

ig
na

te
 lo

w
 d

em
an

d 
st

oc
k.

 
R

ef
ur

bi
sh

 s
to

ck
.  

Id
en

tif
y 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
up

po
rt 

se
rv

ic
es

.  
C

os
t a

nd
 re

so
ur

ce
 s

up
po

rt 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 

 1 
Ap

r. 
‘0

4 

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 N

ee
ds

 
Su

rv
ey

. 
 • 

Af
fo

rd
ab

le
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ol
ic

y 
ad

op
te

d 
– 

ta
rg

et
 fi

gu
re

 o
f 

25
%

 fo
r n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 
 • 

Li
nk

s 
to

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
tra

te
gy

 
an

d 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

H
ou

si
ng

 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 id
en

tif
ie

d.
 

 • 
Lo

w
 d

em
an

d 
st

oc
k 

– 
re

vi
ew

 
of

 S
he

lte
re

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
 • 

Su
st

ai
na

bi
lit

y 
m

od
el

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

, g
ai

ne
d 

pi
ct

ur
e 

of
 

lo
w

 d
em

an
d 

st
oc

k.
 

 • 
Po

lic
y 

de
ci

si
on

 p
as

se
d 

– 
no

t 
to

 in
ve

st
 in

 s
ys

te
m

 b
ui

lt 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

 • 
O

pe
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 S

ch
em

e 
on

go
in

g 
m

on
th

ly
. 

  • 
Lo

ca
l L

et
tin

gs
 P

ol
ic

ie
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 m
ee

t n
ee

ds
 o

f 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
.

• 
C

on
tin

ue
d 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 p
la

nn
in

g 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

m
ax

im
um

 n
um

be
r o

f u
ni

ts
 

pe
r a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 s
ch

em
e.

 
             

Page 28



 

 
8

2.
5 

En
ga

ge
m

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 
M

ee
t w

ith
 p

riv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 la
nd

lo
rd

s.
 

Id
en

tif
y 

ba
rri

er
s 

& 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s.
 

Se
le

ct
 p

ot
en

tia
l p

ar
tn

er
s.

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

ac
tio

ns
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 

pr
iv

at
e 

se
ct

or
. 

C
os

t a
nd

 re
so

ur
ce

 a
ct

io
ns

. 
Pi

lo
t a

ct
io

ns
. 

Ev
al

ua
te

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
an

d 
be

ne
fit

s.
 

C
on

tin
ue

/e
xp

an
d 

if 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e.

 
 

1 
Ja

n.
 

‘0
4 

• 
Ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 
R

eg
io

na
l H

ou
si

ng
 B

oa
rd

 fo
r 

O
ne

 S
to

p 
– 

C
ho

ic
e 

Ba
se

d 
Le

tti
ng

 S
ho

p 
 • 

R
SL

 L
ia

is
on

 G
ro

up
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 le

ve
l 

of
 n

om
in

at
io

ns
. N

om
in

at
io

n 
Ag

re
em

en
t d

ev
el

op
ed

 
 • 

Jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

So
ut

h 
Yo

rk
sh

ire
 C

ha
rte

r –
 p

ro
to

co
l 

fo
r S

ou
th

 Y
or

ks
hi

re
 H

ou
si

ng
 

As
so

ci
at

io
n 

no
m

in
at

io
n 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
. 

 • 
Th

e 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

H
ou

si
ng

 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 fo
rm

ed
 F

eb
 0

3.
 

In
cl

ud
es

 re
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
fro

m
 

th
e 

Pr
iv

at
e 

R
en

te
d 

H
ou

si
ng

 
Se

ct
or

 –
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

R
ot

he
rh

am
 

an
d 

D
is

tri
ct

 R
es

id
en

tia
l 

La
nd

lo
rd

s 
As

so
ci

at
io

n 
(R

D
R

LA
) a

nd
 a

n 
es

ta
te

/le
tti

ng
s 

ag
en

t. 
 • 

C
on

tin
uo

us
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 
R

ob
on

d,
 th

e 
R

en
t G

ua
ra

nt
ee

 
Sc

he
m

e 
to

 m
on

ito
r t

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 h

ou
si

ng
 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
Sc

he
m

e 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 b

y 
th

ei
r c

lie
nt

 
gr

ou
p.

  
 • 

A 
Pr

iv
at

e 
R

en
te

d 
Se

ct
or

 
La

nd
lo

rd
 A

cc
re

di
ta

tio
n 

Sc
he

m
e 

is
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
. 

It 
is

 p
ro

po
se

d 
th

at
 th

is
 

sc
he

m
e 

w
ill 

be
 p

ilo
te

d 
in

 th
e 

Ea
st

w
oo

d/
Sp

rin
gw

el
l 

G
ar

de
ns

 a
re

a 
w

ith
 s

up
po

rt 
fro

m
 th

e 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
at

hf
in

de
r 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

     • 
R

eg
ul

ar
 q

ua
rte

rly
 m

ee
tin

gs
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d.

 
               • 

C
on

tin
ue

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f R

D
R

LA
. 

       • 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 re

so
ur

ce
 –

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r 

R
ob

on
d.

 
  

Page 29



 

 
9

 2.
6 

 In
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

ho
ic

e 
of

 
ho

us
in

g 
by

 h
om

el
es

s 
pe

op
le

 

 Es
ta

bl
is

h 
ch

oi
ce

 b
as

ed
 le

tti
ng

s 
pi

lo
t 

fo
r h

om
el

es
s 

pe
op

le
. 

D
ev

el
op

 p
ub

lic
ity

. 
Im

pl
em

en
t s

ch
em

e 
an

d 
m

on
ito

r 
ou

tc
om

es
. 

Id
en

tif
y 

ro
le

 o
f p

ro
pe

rty
 s

ho
p 

an
d 

tim
es

ca
le

 fo
r i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
  

Li
nk

 c
ho

ic
e 

ba
se

d 
le

tti
ng

s 
if 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 to

 p
ro

pe
rty

 s
ho

p 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 

 1 
N

ov
. 

‘0
3 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r 

ch
oi

ce
 b

as
ed

 le
tti

ng
s 

pi
lo

t, 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 g

ui
de

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

. 
 • 

Aw
ar

en
es

s 
ra

is
in

g 
tra

in
in

g 
se

ss
io

ns
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 to
 a

ll 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 H
ou

si
ng

 
O

ffi
ce

s 
an

d 
ro

ad
sh

ow
s 

to
 

ot
he

r a
ge

nc
ie

s.
 

 • 
Be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 e

xe
rc

is
e 

ca
rri

ed
 o

ut
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 L
oc

al
 

Au
th

or
iti

es
 fo

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n/
co

m
pa

ris
on

. 
Ex

am
pl

es
 o

f g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
.  

 
 • 

D
ra

ft 
w

eb
si

te
 u

nd
er

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 • 

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
n 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 

R
eg

io
na

l H
ou

si
ng

 B
oa

rd
 fo

r 
O

ne
 S

to
p 

– 
C

ho
ic

e 
Ba

se
d 

Le
tti

ng
 S

ho
p.

 
 

Pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 re

po
rt 

to
 H

ou
si

ng
 C

ab
in

et
 

M
em

be
r. 

 

 2.
7 

 In
cr

ea
se

d 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

w
om

en
 fl

ee
in

g 
do

m
es

tic
 v

io
le

nc
e 

 Id
en

tif
y 

op
tio

ns
 w

ith
 c

lie
nt

 g
ro

up
. 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
pr

io
rit

y 
of

 o
pt

io
ns

. 
Id

en
tif

y 
pa

rtn
er

s.
 

C
os

t o
pt

io
ns

 a
nd

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 s

up
po

rt 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 
Ti

m
et

ab
le

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 o
pt

io
ns

. 
Ev

al
ua

te
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

. 
 

 1 
O

ct
. 

‘0
3 

• 
R

ot
he

rh
am

 W
om

en
’s

 R
ef

ug
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 c
om

m
itm

en
t f

ro
m

 
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

Pe
op

le
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 
re

ve
nu

e.
 

  • 
Bi

d 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 H
ou

si
ng

 
C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
3 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 n

ew
 re

fu
ge

 
(in

cr
ea

se
 fr

om
 4

 to
 1

0 
be

d 
sp

ac
es

)  
 • 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f m

ov
e 

on
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 h

ou
si

ng
 fo

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
ex

pe
rie

nc
in

g 
D

om
es

tic
 V

io
le

nc
e.

 S
up

po
rt 

to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
W

om
en

’s
 

R
ef

ug
e.

 

• 
D

ec
is

io
n 

to
 b

e 
re

ac
he

d 
Ap

ril
 0

4.
 

          • 
O

ne
 u

ni
t o

f f
am

ily
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

un
de

r p
re

pa
ra

tio
n.

 
Fu

rth
er

 u
ni

t s
ou

gh
t. 

Page 30



 

 
10

 2.
8 

 Fu
rn

is
he

d 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t 

 Es
ta

bl
is

h 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 o

ut
co

m
es

. 
M

on
ito

r e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s.
 

C
on

tin
ue

/e
xp

an
d 

if 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

. 
 

 1 
O

ct
. 

‘0
3 

• 
Fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

re
po

rt 
fo

r 
Fu

rn
is

he
d 

H
om

e 
Sc

he
m

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
 • 

M
ov

in
g 

in
 P

ac
ks

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

fo
r v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
ne

w
 te

na
nt

s.
 

• 
Ye

ar
 1

 im
pl

em
en

t p
ilo

t o
f 5

0 
fu

rn
is

he
d 

ho
m

es
. 

  • 
W

ill 
be

 in
 u

se
 fr

om
 A

pr
il 

04
. 

 • 
Ye

ar
 2

 d
ev

el
op

 fu
rth

er
 1

00
 fu

rn
is

he
d 

ho
m

es
,  

 • 
Ye

ar
 3

 a
n 

ad
di

tio
na

l  
10

0 
fu

rn
is

he
d 

ho
m

es
 to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
  

 • 
U

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 re

gu
la

r m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 
su

cc
es

s 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bi

lit
y 

of
 S

ch
em

e.
  

 2.
9 

 Av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 s

to
ra

ge
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r h
om

el
es

s 
pe

op
le

’s
 p

os
se

ss
io

ns
 

 C
on

su
lt 

on
 s

to
ra

ge
 n

ee
ds

. 
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
co

st
 o

pt
io

ns
. 

D
ec

id
e 

on
 m

os
t e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

op
tio

n(
s)

. 
En

su
re

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 m

ee
t 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

. 
 

 1 
O

ct
. 

‘0
3 

• 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
w

ith
 

ex
is

tin
g 

fu
rn

itu
re

 re
-c

yc
lin

g 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 s
to

ra
ge

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 
 • 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
w

ith
 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
to

 e
xp

lo
re

 
op

tio
ns

. 
 • 

Be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

w
ith

 S
he

ffi
el

d,
 B

ar
ns

le
y 

an
d 

D
on

ca
st

er
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
ei

r 
st

or
ag

e 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

.  
 

• 
R

ep
or

t t
o 

be
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r H

ou
si

ng
 

C
ab

in
et

 A
pr

il 
04

. 

 2.
10

 
 La

ck
 o

f a
cc

es
s 

fo
r p

et
s 

 Id
en

tif
y 

re
le

va
nt

 c
ha

rit
ie

s 
to

 
te

m
po

ra
ril

y 
re

ho
m

e 
pe

ts
. 

Id
en

tif
y 

sc
he

m
es

 w
he

re
 p

et
s 

w
ill 

be
 

al
lo

w
ed

. 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

gr
ou

nd
 ru

le
s 

fo
r p

et
s 

w
ith

 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s.

 
En

ga
ge

 R
SP

C
A/

an
im

al
 w

el
fa

re
 

ch
ar

iti
es

. 
 

 1 
Ja

n.
 

‘0
4 

• 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
w

ith
 

An
im

al
 S

an
ct

ua
rie

s,
 R

SP
C

A 
an

d 
C

at
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Le

ag
ue

, 
no

ne
 o

f w
ho

m
 h

av
e 

an
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 a
ss

is
t i

n 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

 

• 
C

on
ta

ct
 to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 

D
og

 W
ar

de
n.

 
 • 

Be
nc

hm
ar

k 
w

ith
 S

he
ffi

el
d,

 D
on

ca
st

er
 

an
d 

Ba
rn

sl
ey

 C
ou

nc
il’s

. 
 • 

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
w

ith
 W

om
en

’s
 

Ai
d.

 
 • 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
be

 p
re

pa
re

d 
fo

r H
ou

si
ng

 
C

ab
in

et
 A

pr
il 

04
. 

 

Page 31



 

 
11

  O
bj

ec
tiv

e:
 3

: T
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ga
th

er
in

g 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
qu

al
ity

. 
 O

ut
co

m
e:

  T
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
st

re
am

lin
ed

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ith
 w

el
l t

ra
in

ed
, k

no
w

le
dg

ea
bl

e 
st

af
f w

ith
 c

le
ar

 v
al

ue
s 

sh
ar

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

nd
 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
cu

st
om

er
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t. 
  A

ct
io

n 
 

 M
ile

st
on

es
 

 D
at

e 
 

 A
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 

 Fu
tu

re
 A

ct
io

n 

 3.
1 

 Be
tte

r c
o-

or
di

na
tio

n 
of

 
ex

is
tin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 
pa

rti
cu

la
r t

o 
re

du
ce

 
of

fe
nd

in
g 

an
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

e 
m

is
us

e.
 

 Es
ta

bl
is

h 
di

re
ct

or
y 

of
 a

ll 
se

rv
ic

es
 

of
fe

re
d.

 
O

bt
ai

n 
ag

re
em

en
t o

f o
th

er
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r b

et
te

r c
o-

or
di

na
tio

n.
 

D
ev

el
op

 jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

nd
 

ag
re

ed
 jo

in
t p

ro
to

co
ls

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
da

ta
 

sh
ar

in
g 

lin
ke

d 
to

 re
du

ce
d 

of
fe

nd
in

g,
 

su
bs

ta
nc

e 
m

is
us

e 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t o
pt

io
ns

. 
Id

en
tif

y 
fu

ll 
co

st
s 

an
d 

co
nf

irm
 re

-
al

ig
nm

en
t o

f r
es

ou
rc

es
. 

 

 1 
N

ov
. 

‘0
4 

• 
G

en
er

al
 D

ire
ct

or
y 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

Po
ck

et
 G

ui
de

 to
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
se

ct
io

ns
 re

la
tin

g 
to

 o
ffe

nd
in

g 
an

d 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

m
is

us
e.

 
(o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

1.
1)

 
  

M
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 D
ru

g 
St

ra
te

gy
 T

ea
m

, 
C

om
m

un
ity

 A
lc

oh
ol

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
C

rim
e 

an
d 

D
is

or
de

r S
tra

te
gy

 T
ea

m
 to

 
pr

og
re

ss
 o

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
ile

st
on

es
. 

 3.
2 

 Fu
rth

er
 re

se
ar

ch
 in

to
 a

 
nu

m
be

r o
f h

ar
d 

to
 

re
ac

h 
gr

ou
ps

.  
 

 Es
ta

bl
is

h 
re

se
ar

ch
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
n.

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

le
ad

 re
se

ar
ch

 ro
le

 fo
r e

ac
h 

ar
ea

. 
Id

en
tif

y 
& 

co
st

 w
ha

t p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l 
re

se
ar

ch
 is

 n
ee

de
d 

Am
en

d/
re

pr
io

rit
is

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 in

 li
ne

 
w

ith
 fi

nd
in

gs
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s.
 

 

 1 
Ap

r. 
‘0

4 

• 
Id

en
tif

ie
d 

pr
io

rit
y 

ha
rd

 to
 re

ac
h 

gr
ou

ps
 th

ro
ug

h 
M

ul
ti-

Ag
en

cy
 

Aw
ar

en
es

s 
Ev

en
t. 

 
 • 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 h
ol

d 
m

on
th

ly
 d

ro
p 

in
 s

ur
ge

rie
s 

at
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
ag

en
ci

es
. 

 

• 
M

ee
tin

g 
to

 b
e 

ar
ra

ng
ed

 F
eb

/M
ar

ch
  

w
ith

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
ag

en
ci

es
 to

 p
rio

rit
is

e 
ke

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 w

or
k.

 
 • 

Ac
tio

n 
Pl

an
 re

qu
ire

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
 • 

Sp
ec

ia
l N

ee
ds

 S
ur

ve
y 

re
qu

ire
d 

du
rin

g 
20

04
/2

00
5 

Page 32



 

 
12

 3.
3 

 D
ev

el
op

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
w

ay
s 

of
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

cu
st

om
er

s 
an

d 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 in

 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

 

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t o
pt

io
ns

 fo
rm

 
ex

is
tin

g 
go

od
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t p
la

n 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
w

ith
 

tim
es

ca
le

. 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
pl

an
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

w
ith

in
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e.
 

 

 1 
Ja

n.
 

‘0
4 

• 
‘Im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
M

az
e 

Su
gg

es
tio

n 
Sc

he
m

e’
 

le
af

le
t p

ro
du

ce
d 

an
d 

gi
ve

n 
to

 a
ll 

ho
m

el
es

s 
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

 
 • 

M
on

th
ly

 p
riz

e 
fo

r b
es

t 
su

gg
es

tio
n,

 p
ar

tly
 s

up
po

rte
d 

by
 

sp
on

so
rs

hi
p 

fro
m

 A
sd

a.
 . 

Fi
rs

t 
pr

iz
e 

to
 b

e 
aw

ar
de

d 
Ap

ril
 0

4.
  

  • 
C

om
pe

tit
io

n 
he

ld
 a

t M
ul

ti-
Ag

en
cy

 A
w

ar
en

es
s 

Ev
en

t f
or

 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s 

to
 c

ho
os

e 
a 

na
m

e 
fo

r R
ot

he
rh

am
’s

 P
oc

ke
t G

ui
de

 
to

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 • 
M

ax
i-M

es
sa

gi
ng

 s
er

vi
ce

 
(m

ob
ile

 p
ho

ne
 li

nk
 w

ith
 

cu
st

om
er

s)
 u

nd
er

 in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n.
 

  • 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

Te
na

nt
s 

an
d 

R
es

id
en

ts
 H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

C
ha

m
pi

on
 F

oc
us

 G
ro

up
 to

 lo
ok

 
at

 s
er

vi
ce

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 
   • 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
us

er
 

fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
p.

  
  • 

H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
R

eg
is

tra
tio

n 
C

ar
d 

pr
od

uc
ed

 fo
r a

pp
lic

an
ts

 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 u

nd
er

 H
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
Le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
to

 h
el

p 
en

su
re

 
co

nt
ac

t i
s 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d.

 (s
am

pl
e 

en
c.

) 

                 • 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

w
ith

 L
eg

al
 

an
d 

I.T
. p

rio
r t

o 
ca

rry
in

g 
ou

t p
ilo

t. 
• 

C
on

ta
ct

 T
AR

A’
s 

vi
a 

Te
na

nt
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t U

ni
t t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
in

te
re

st
ed

 p
eo

pl
e.

 
• 

In
iti

al
 o

ne
 o

ff 
m

ee
tin

g 
to

 b
e 

ar
ra

ng
ed

 M
ar

ch
/A

pr
il 

04
. 

• 
C

ar
d 

in
tro

du
ce

d 
M

ar
ch

 0
4.

 

Page 33



 

 
13

 3.
4 

(a
) 

                     3.
4(

b)
 

 C
on

tin
uo

us
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
st

re
tc

hi
ng

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
m

ea
su

re
s.

 
                  D

el
iv

er
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t. 

 Id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
to

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d.
 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
re

gu
la

r b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 
D

ev
el

op
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

ta
rg

et
s.

 
                 R

ev
ie

w
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

tru
ct

ur
e.

 
R

e-
al

ig
n 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 

se
rv

ic
e.

 

 1 
O

ct
. 

’0
3 

                    1 
O

ct
. 

’0
3 

  

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
H

om
el

es
s 

Se
lf 

As
se

ss
m

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 

 • 
M

on
th

ly
 re

po
rti

ng
 a

ga
in

st
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

In
di

ca
to

rs
 o

ng
oi

ng
.  

 • 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
EF

Q
M

 e
xe

rc
is

e 
on

 
H

om
el

es
s 

Se
rv

ic
e 

 • 
Li

nk
s 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

w
ith

 
H

ou
se

m
ar

k 
as

 a
n 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
to

ol
. 

 • 
At

te
nd

ed
 H

om
el

es
s 

Be
ac

on
 

ev
en

ts
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
go

od
 

pr
ac

tic
e.

 
 • 

Id
en

tif
ie

d 
ne

ed
 to

 m
on

ito
r r

e-
ho

us
in

g 
of

 h
om

el
es

sn
es

s 
ap

pl
ic

an
ts

. W
or

k 
un

de
rw

ay
 to

 
ga

in
 p

ic
tu

re
 o

f c
ur

re
nt

 s
itu

at
io

n.
 

  • 
Pr

op
os

ed
 re

-s
tru

ct
ur

e 
of

 
H

om
el

es
sn

es
s 

Te
am

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

 
 • 

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ee

r r
ev

ie
w

 w
ith

 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 

(B
ea

co
n 

C
ou

nc
il)

. 
 . 

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 C
ha

rte
r M

ar
k 

Se
lf 

As
se

ss
m

en
t o

n 
H

om
el

es
s 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 
           • 

In
cr

ea
se

 le
ve

l o
f p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

in
di

ca
to

rs
 o

n 
H

om
el

es
s 

Se
rv

ic
e.

 
 • 

Aw
ai

tin
g 

ov
er

al
l r

e-
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

of
 

H
ou

si
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

 • 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 - 

 
aw

ai
tin

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fro

m
 O

D
PM

 
 • 

D
ev

el
op

 S
ou

th
 Y

or
ks

hi
re

 s
ub

 
re

gi
on

al
 w

or
ki

ng
 g

ro
up

. 

 3.
5 

 D
ev

el
op

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
/ 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 

 Es
ta

bl
is

h 
ga

ps
 in

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
da

ta
 s

ha
rin

g 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ac
tio

ns
 in

 p
la

n 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

co
-o

rd
in

at
io

n.
 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
ga

ps
 in

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ac
tio

ns
 in

 p
la

n 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y.
  

Pr
od

uc
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

fte
r 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t o

f s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s.
  

 

 1 
O

ct
. 

‘0
3 

• 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f D
ire

ct
or

y 
of

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 M

ul
ti-

Ag
en

cy
 

Aw
ar

en
es

s 
Ev

en
ts

. 
 • 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

tw
o 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
ev

en
ts

 e
nc

om
pa

ss
in

g 
al

l 
st

at
ut

or
y 

an
d 

no
n 

st
at

ut
or

y 
ag

en
ci

es
 

• 
M

ee
tin

g 
to

 b
e 

ar
ra

ng
ed

 M
ar

ch
 0

4 
to

 
pr

og
re

ss
 m

ile
st

on
es

.  
 • 

D
ev

el
op

in
g 

us
er

 fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
p.

 

   

Page 34



APPENDIX B 
 

Corporate context and priorities 
 

Rotherham MBC has a number of corporate priorities.  The direct links between the 
Council’s priorities and homelessness issues are identified in the table below: 
 
 
Corporate Priorities Links to Homelessness 
Investing in People Through support and creation of skills for 

life and work. 
Investing in the Economy Improving the individual’s ability to secure 

and maintain employment or offer voluntary 
services to the community. 

A place to live Improving the opportunity to access choice 
regarding housing options and also 
ensuring a Decent home for all. 

A place for everyone Reducing inequalities and supporting and 
celebrating the diversity of Rotherham’s 
communities. 
 
Removing stigmatisation of homelessness. 

A place which cares Maximising independence. 
 
Improving the health of homeless people. 
 
Providing support to maintain 
accommodation. 
 
Empowering vulnerable people and 
communities. 

A safe place Enabling people who have experienced 
homelessness, or the risk of homelessness 
to feel safe, knowing that services exist to 
provide help, advice and accommodation. 

A place for enjoyment Engaging in community activities and 
utilising cultural and leisure facilities. 

A place with active, involved 
communities 

Engaging in citizenship and local 
democracy to feel part of the local and 
wider community. 

A progressive, responsive, 
accessible quality-service 
provider 

Homelessness partnerships providing high 
quality, accessible and customer friendly 
services. 

 

Page 35



APPENDIX C 
 
 Risk Analysis 
 
 Any strategy poses risks to its full implementation.  The overall risk of the strategy failing 

is assessed as being low to medium and there is a need to identify what the main risk 
are and to identify ways in which those risks can be minimised, as can be seen in the 
table below.  This is crucial in this instance, as Rotherham MBC and partners must be 
seen to deliver on key priorities in the strategy. 

 
 

 
Area of risk 

Risk rating 
high, medium, low

 
Safeguards 

Strategy receives low 
corporate priority 

L Ensure strategy is endorsed fully by 
Cabinet and identified as key in other 
related strategies, e.g. Housing. 

Prevention measures 
fail to reduce 
homelessness 

M Action plan is specific about 
development of targets; lead officers to 
monitor and review targets regularly 
with relevant groups.  Housing 
providers need to be on board with the 
main priorities for increased 
accommodation for priority groups. 

Accommodation and 
support provision is not 
increased in line with 
identified need 

H There is a risk of low support for the 
provision of direct access and services 
for those with complex needs because 
this could be seen potentially as an 
unpopular service.  Communities need 
to be supported in accepting the 
development of services in their area. 

Information and 
service quality do not 
improve 

L Information needs must be part of a 
detailed research project plan. 

Resources are not 
available to deliver 
strategy 

H Strategy identifies the need to attract 
additional resources to enable delivery.  
Resource availability must be 
considered further and priorities within 
the action plan re-established if 
resources fall short of the total amount 
needed. 

Significant changes to 
services provided as 
part of Supporting 
People review process 

L Financial impact of reviews are likely to 
fall at the end of the three year interim 
period (2005/06), but services may be 
required to change service delivery 
practices and methods during the 
interim period which may impact on 
workload and staff priorities.  
Supporting People Lead Officer to be 
kept closely linked to implementation 
and monitoring of strategy. 

 

Page 36



APPENDIX D 
 
 Strategic Links 
 

A number of plans and strategies are relevant to the Homelessness Strategy and 
have been utilised in the review. 
 
The Homelessness Strategy is written with reference to principles within all relevant 
documents but particular links are identified with the following strategies and plans: 

 
 

Strategy Strategic Link 
Yorkshire and the Humber 
Regional Housing Strategy 2003 

Promoting social inclusion and diversity. 
Partnership working. 
Influencing and responding to changing 
housing markets. 
Provision of affordable homes to enable 
mixed income communities. 
Fair access to housing for all groups. 

Rotherham Community Strategy Improving health and well being for all. 
Diversity – ensure provision is responsible 
to meets of a diverse population. 
Access and opportunity – opportunities for 
vulnerable people to live independent and 
fulfilling lives. 

Corporate Plan Supporting vulnerable people and 
improving life chances for all. 
Improving quality of life. 
Reducing inequalities. 

Housing Strategy An appropriate supply of housing that 
meets needs in the borough at a price that 
people can afford to pay. 

Shadow Supporting People 
Strategy 

Ensuring that vulnerable people have the 
opportunity to improve their quality of life by 
providing supported accommodation and, 
therefore, greater independence. 
Delivering high quality and strategically 
planned housing-related services which are 
cost effective, reliable and complement 
existing care services. 
Developing a working partnership between 
Social Services, Housing, Health, Probation 
and other support providers. 

 

Page 37



 
 
1. Meeting CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

   
 

2. Date of Meeting  10 May 2004  
 

 
3. Title   Petition by the residents of the Ann Rhodes Centre 

    Sheltered Accommodation Scheme   
 

4. Originating Officer Glenn Lamb 
    R&M Team Assistant Co-ordinator 

   Tel Ext 2208 
5. Issue 

 The residents who reside within this sheltered scheme have raised a petition asking to 
have their properties brought forward within scheme.          

 
6. Summary 

 The residents of the Ann-Rhodes Centre sheltered scheme feel that as one of the first  
 sheltered schemes to be built in the Rotherham area, they have been let down by the 

Council regarding refurbishment of their properties. 
  
 The residents are paying between £53 to £58 per week rent. The residents would like
 to think that their properties were in a better condition than they are now.   
     

7. Clearance/Consultation   
 Housing Services staff have been in consultation with Councillor Hodgkiss regarding 
 this issue, ie when the properties will be on the Decent Homes Scheme. The Area 

Housing Manager has also been kept fully informed with this situation.   
           . 

8. Timing 
  Petition requires a completed reply as per Council procedures. 
  

9. Background 
 In July 2000 the Government announced an increase in resources for housing. They 

set a target that by 2010 all social housing would meet set standards of decency. The 
Government also announced that these works must take place on the most deprived 
areas first.  

  
 The Programme is based on work being carried out in the most deprived areas of the 

Borough first, within different Enumeration districts. 
                 

10. Argument 
 The Decent Homes programme is due to last until 2010, with some areas receiving 

works before others.  The flow of works within estates must be carried out to ensure 
maximum efficiency from the current funding available.      

 
    Within the Decency Standard there is no discrimination against the age of properties 

which receive works, therefore properties which are relatively new build may still 
require works to bring them to the required standard. The properties within the Ann 
Rhodes complex are due to be surveyed to assess the level of Decency within this 

RROOTTHHEERRHHAAMM  BBOORROOUUGGHH CCOOUUNNCCIILL –– RREEPPOORRTT TTOO MMEEMMBBEERRSS  

Agenda Item 7Page 38



financial year, 2004/05. Any works identified will be programmed in to be completed 
within the next financial year, 2005/06.       
     

 
11. Risks and Uncertainties 

  The Decent Homes Scheme is dependent on maintaining an adequate funding 
stream.  Future funding at this time is unknown, dependent upon a successful ALMO 
bid, and the acquisition of a high star rating.      
     

 Although the residents feel that their properties require improvement, until they are 
surveyed it is not known what level of works will be required.    

 
12. Finance 

 The amount of funding available for this current financial year is £8.824,000. 
          

13. Sustainability 
 Before any works are carried out to bring properties up to the Decency Standard, 

clarification is sought to ensure that the area enjoys a long-term sustainable future. 
The Area Management team currently ascertains the level of sustainability within an 
individual area.   

 
14. Wards Affected 

  Ward 5 
 

15. References 
  Petition 

 
16. Presentation 

  Not applicable 
 

17. Recommendations 
 THAT THE CABINET MEMBER: 
 

• NOTES THE ACTION TAKEN 
• RECEIVES A FURTHER REPORT WHEN THE SURVEY RESULTS ARE 

AVAILABLE 
• CONSIDERS OPTIONS FOR INCLUSION WITHIN THE ANNUAL 

MAINTENANCE PLAN GIVEN THE TIMESCALE FOR APPROVING THE PLAN 
  

Page 39



 
 
1. Meeting CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

   
 

2. Date of Meeting   10 May 2004  
 

 
3. Title VOID PROPERTY MONITORING for 5 April 2004 to 

 30 April 2004 
    

 
4. Originating Officer Dave Abbott 

           Housing Manager, Tel Ext. 2294 
 
 

5. Issue 
 The report is intended to update Members on void property relet performance and 

associated issues. 
 

6. Summary 
Performance on relet times and rent loss on void properties needs to improve this year 
for the Service to meet its performance targets, and the needs and aspirations of 
tenants in Rotherham. 

  
7. Clearance/Consultation   

In addition to this report, the ‘Tenants Vacant Property Policy Panel’ meets every six 
weeks to consider reports on performance and allocation issues. 

 
8. Timing 

In order to keep Members informed on this key issue, a report will be produced for the 
first meeting of each month. 

 
9. Background 

The new targets for 2004/05 set for HES68 and BVPI 69 are 20 days and 1.3% 
respectively.  The report shows that performance on rent loss is 1.56%, and the overall 
time to let dwellings from 5 April 2004 to 30 April 2004 is 24.44 days. 

  
10. Argument 

Improved performance will reduce the blight of empty properties and increase the 
capacity of the service to maximize performance. 

  
11. Risks and Uncertainties 

 Failure to relet tenancies in a timely manner will affect the sustainability of 
communities and increase rent loss, which in turn reduces the ability of the Service to 
deliver quality housing management services. 

 
12. Finance 

 No additional resources required.  Improved performance will increase rental income. 
 
 
 

RROOTTHHEERRHHAAMM  BBOORROOUUGGHH CCOOUUNNCCIILL –– RREEPPOORRTT TTOO MMEEMMBBEERRSS  

Agenda Item 8Page 40



 
13. Sustainability 

The actions taken to improve performance including the introduction of Local Letting 
strategies, which alongside future Choice Based Lettings will enhance sustainability, 
because people will choose the area and type of property they live in. 

 
14. Wards Affected 

  All 
 

15. References 
  Audit Commission guidance 

 
16. Presentation 

  Void Performance Monitoring Report for the Period 05/04/04 – 30/04/04 
 

17. Recommendations 
 THAT THE CABINET MEMBER NOTES THE ACTIONS TAKEN AND CURRENT 

PROGRESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 41



Void Performance Monitoring for the Period 05.04.04– 30.04.04 
 

1. The Number and Type of Voids 
 
1.1 The number of voids on 30th April 2004 increased by fourteen from the start 

of the period to 384 or 1.62% of the stock. The majority of voids, 228 or 
59.38% are those currently excluded from HES 68; these include properties 
such as those awaiting renovation.  

 
1.2 The number of voids that meet the criteria to be included within the HES 68 

increased by twelve during the period to 156. This equates to 0.66% of the 
stock. 

 
 
2. Performance  Against BVPI 68 
 
2.1 The definition for HES 68 is, the average re-let times for dwellings let in the 

financial year. The time is calculated from the day the authority becomes 
aware that a property is to become void up to the day a tenant is signed up for 
a property and receives the keys. 

 
2.2 The overall performance against this indicator is 24.44 days during the 

period, a deterioration on the end of year performance for 2003/04. Three 
Neighbourhood Housing Offices are operating within the target of 20 days. 
The steps taken to improve performance during the period are highlighted in 
section 5.  

 
2.3 The performance on allocating open access properties has continued with 10 

open access properties being let in the period.  The overall performance if all 
open access properties were removed from the indicator would be 24.39 
days.   

  
2.4 The current level of performance, based on the 2003/04 comparative 

ALMO data, would place the authority in the top quartiles of All England 
ALMO’s and 4th best .  The top quartile was anything below 30 days 
average.  

 
2.5  A new Local Performance Indicator was introduced for 2003/04 - HES14.  

This indicator measures the precise average time taken to let a void from 
when one tenancy terminated until the next one starts.  This indicator 
excludes all those properties that are excluded from HES.68. Performance 
based on this indicator is 20.68 days during the period.   

 
3. Terminations, Lettings and Properties Available to Let 
 
3.1 Terminations & Lettings There were 105 terminations in the period of which 

97 met the criteria to be included in HES 68 and 126 lettings. The cumulative 
figures for this year are 105 terminations and 126 lettings. In addition there 
have been 12 new tenancies created by mutual exchanges since April 2004.  

 

Page 42



 
 
3.2 Property Available to Let  
 
 The number of available to let properties at the start of the period is 40. 
 
4. Performance against BVPI 69 
 
4.1 Definition for HES 69 is the percentage of rent lost through local authority 

dwellings becoming vacant 
 
4.2 The amount of rent income lost on voids up to 30 April 2004 has improved 

from year end to 1.56% This level of performance, based on the 2001/02 
comparative data, would continue to place the authority in the upper quartile 
for Metropolitan Authorities.  

 
4.3 Up to date comparative data is currently being collected, for this discontinued 

BVPI,  by Housemark. It is anticipated that this will be available in June 2004. 
 
 
5. Actions Taken to Improve Performance in the Period 
 
HES.68 
 
• Cabinet approval given to commence a Furnished Tenancy Scheme from the 

1st May, 2004. The scheme will create more sustainable tenancies by 
providing furnished accommodation to those who may not otherwise be able 
to furnish a home.  

• Moving in starter packs commenced. The scheme will help create more 
sustainable tenancies by providing basic items   to help set up home with a 
loan. 

• The Houseproud Survey was extended from the Going Local Pilot area to all 
parts of the borough. The survey measures the quality and satisfaction with 
the service. 

• Cabinet approval was given to commence rehousing residents from Dalton 
house as part of the first step to developing an Extra Care Sheltered Housing 
Scheme, in partnership with Hallam Housing Society. This will help meet need 
and reduce the number of long term voids. 

• The Open Access website and displays have been updated to improve 
accessibility.  The Open Access List were also  issued to 150 customers and 
the Tenants and Residents Associations 

 
6.  District Performance and Issues 
 
6.1 The teams retain a target of letting one more property than is terminated each 

week. The table in Appendix 1 identifies the performance of the district offices 
during the period. 

 
6.2 Although  Local Letting strategies have had a significant  impact on the  letting 

long term voids, there are still pockets of one bed sheltered accommodation 

Page 43



that prove difficult to let. Examples are Maltby and the Going Local Pilot 
where a one bed bungalow in a good condition has been offered 12 times and  
still remains void.  

 
6.3 Individual voids which require extensive works while not meeting the Decent 

Homes criteria  have a disproportionate affect on performance at the start of 
the year because there are fewer voids.  

 
7.   Sustainability 
  
The ‘sustainability of tenancies’ indicator (HES5) measures the percentage of 
terminating tenancies in the year that have lasted longer than 12 months.  The 
2003/2004 target has been revised from 80% to 90% because it was not sufficiently 
challenging. Performance for the twelve-month period up to 30th April 2004 was 
95.82%. This figure does not include tenancies terminating within 12 months due to 
transfers, mutual exchanges and deaths. If these were included the figure would be 
93.69%.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

– 
St

at
us

 o
f V

oi
ds

 b
y 

A
re

a 
O

ffi
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

0/
04

/0
4 

  D
is

tr
ic

t 
B

VP
I 6

8 
Le

ag
ue

 
Po

si
tio

n 
Pr

op
er

tie
s 

Te
rm

in
at

ed
 i

n 
Pe

rio
d 

Pr
op

er
tie

s 
Le

t i
n 

Pe
rio

d 
Pr

op
er

tie
s 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 L
et

 
30

/0
4/

04
 

O
pe

n 
A

cc
es

s 
Pr

op
er

tie
s 

Si
gn

ed
 

up
 

in
 

Pe
rio

d 
M

al
tb

y 
 

22
.4

1 
da

ys
 

4t
h 

17
 

12
 

0 
0 

D
in

ni
ng

to
n 

 
18

.2
5 

da
ys

 
2n

d 
5 

8 
3 

0 

W
at

h 
 

26
.3

3 
da

ys
 

5t
h 

10
 

9 
13

 
2 

Sw
in

to
n 

 
18

.5
0 

da
ys

 
3r

d 
1 

8 
5 

4 

R
aw

m
ar

sh
 

 
29

.5
7 

da
ys

 
9t

h 
12

 
22

 
7 

0 

G
oi

ng
 

Lo
ca

l 
Pi

lo
t 

 

27
.7

4 
da

ys
 

7t
h 

23
 

18
 

3 
2 

Ea
st

 
H

er
rin

gt
ho

rp
e 

  

28
.0

7 
da

ys
 

8t
h 

9 
12

 
2 

0 

To
w

n 
C

en
tre

 
 

26
.4

4 
da

ys
 

6t
h 

19
 

23
 

7 
0 

As
to

n 
 

11
.2

7 
da

ys
 

1s
t 

9 
14

 
0 

2 

TO
TA

L 
 

 
10

5 
12

6 
40

 
10

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
B 

Th
e 

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

fig
ur

e 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 in
 th

e 
C

an
kl

ow
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Sc
he

m
e 

Page 45



Agenda Item 11Page 46
By virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 49
By virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 12Page 50
By virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 52
By virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 13Page 79
By virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 14Page 81
By virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 15Page 83
By virtue of paragraph(s) 8, 9 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


